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Small Business Innovation Fund 
RFP Specification No. ED23-0016F 

 
All interested parties had the opportunity to submit questions in writing by email to Ryan Foster, 
Senior Buyer by date questions were due. The answers to the questions received are provided 
below and posted to the City’s website at www.TacomaPurchasing.org:  Navigate to Current 
Contracting Opportunities / Services Solicitations, and then click Questions and Answers for this 
Specification. This information IS NOT considered an addendum. Respondents should consider 
this information when submitting their proposals. 
 
Question 1: Is there a page limit for the application?  If so, does this limit also include 

attachments? (such as resumes) 
 

Answer 1:    No there is no page limit. 
 

Question 2: Since these are federal funds, can an applicant provide an indirect cost for 
administrative expenses?  If so, what is the allowable rate? 
 

Answer 2:   Yes, an applicant can include indirect costs for administrative expenses, we do 
not have a set specific ratio and/or allowable rate for administrative expenses. 
 

Question 3: The RFP states that Appendix A and Information in Section 12 need to be 
submitted as a part of the submittal package. Does Appendix B also need 
to be submitted?   
 

Answer 3:   Section 12 is inclusive of Appendix B. Respondents must utilize Appendix B in 
order to provide an answer for Section 12. It is also required to provide Appendix 
A as stated in on Page 4. 
 

Question 4: How will this project be paid? Is this a cost reimbursable program, or by 
deliverables, for example? 
 

Answer 4:   This project will be paid by deliverables based upon the executed contract. 
 

Question 5: May we please have a definition of "Funder" for the requested reference? 
 

Answer 5:   Funder refers to an organization/entity that has contracted your 
firm/company/organization to provide services and/or products based on a 
contract and/or deliverables. For example, if awarded this contract the City of 
Tacoma would be considered a funder to the contractor. 
 

Question 6: Does "Education" include actually helping someone to build a website, for 
example, or is it strictly instructional? 
 

Answer 6:   Yes, education does and can include helping someone build a website. 
 

http://www.tacomapurchasing.org/
https://www.cityoftacoma.org/government/city_departments/finance/procurement_and_payables_division/purchasing/contracting_opportunities
https://www.cityoftacoma.org/government/city_departments/finance/procurement_and_payables_division/purchasing/contracting_opportunities
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Question 7: Could we provide some funds from the grant to organizations to help with 
website development or other substantial work? 
 

Answer 7:   Yes.   
 

Question 8: Will we need to be registered to do business in the City of Tacoma? 
 

Answer 8:   Yes, if selected for award, respondents must have a current and active business 
license with the City of Tacoma prior to any work being started.  
 

Question 9: This procurement opportunity is very similar to “Small Business Technical 
Assistance Grant” Specification no. ED22-0340F.  We applied to that 
opportunity and was not awarded it.  Are there differences in the criteria for 
this opportunity?  If so, what are they? 
 

Answer 9:   No, there is no different required criteria. However, the scope for this RFP is 
similar although not identical to ED22-0340F and this RFP is from a different and 
separate funding source.  
 

Question 10: You are awarding 3 contracts totaling $500,000 for a period of about 90 
days.  What types of costs do you expect to cover in such a short amount 
of time? 
 

Answer 10:   We expect that we will be covering costs related to direct services provided to 
businesses, consultant and/or subcontractor costs, some administrative/staff 
costs, and miscellaneous costs such as travel, venue rental, etc. 
 

Question 11: If we are selected how is the payment submitted? From the RFP it sounds 
like reimbursement will be done through credit card or PayPal. How will the 
transaction fee be calculated into the reimbursement? 
 

Answer 11:   Contractors will be invoicing us monthly based on deliverables and will follow the 
City’s standard of payment via ACH or check. Please refer to pages 16 & 17 of 
the City's Standard Terms and Conditions. 
https://cms.cityoftacoma.org/purchasing/StandardTermsandConditions.pdf 
 

Question 12: In section 12.10 it also discusses reporting capabilities. It asks for us to 
indicate level I, II, or III. Can you clarify what those levels are? I did not see 
the description in the RFP. 
 

Answer 12:   Please refer to the City’s standard terms and conditions section 1.44 for 
  credit card requirements. For reporting capabilities, please see Exhibit A below. 

 
 
 
 

https://cms.cityoftacoma.org/purchasing/StandardTermsandConditions.pdf
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Question 13: Can you provide the ratings, comments and rankings of the recent 
previous City of Tacoma RFP Small Business Technical Assistance 
proposals? 
 

Answer 13:   At this time the results of ED22-0340F are preliminary as contracts have not 
been finalized. Once the contracts have been finalized the bid results will be 
published on the purchasing website on this webpage. However, this will not 
include all scoring and rankings, if you’d like to receive this you may submit a 
formal Public Disclosure Request here. 
 

Question 14: I am interested in submitting a proposal. I have not done this before? Can 
you provide a sample of what a proposal looks like? 
 

Answer 14:    Appendix B of the RFP Specification can be used as a proposal template. 
Respondents will also need to provide information from section 12 which can be 
drafted through word (as well as Appendix B) and converted to a pdf document 
and submitted. Appendix A is also required. 
 

Question 15: Do we need to have a City of Tacoma business license? 
 

Answer 15:   Yes, if selected for award, respondents must have a current and active business 
license with the City of Tacoma prior to any work being started. 
 

Question 16: Is this RFP funded upon deliverables? 
 

Answer 16:   Yes, contractors will be sending in monthly invoices based upon deliverables as 
defined by their contract with The City. 
 

Question 17: What is the total amount of dollars to be awarded?  Is there a limit on the 
amount of award per organization? 
 

Answer 17:   There is $500,000 total available, the City may award up to three (3) separate 
contracts contingent upon submissions. At the least there could be one (1) sole 
contract and at maximum three (3) separate contracts. 
 

Question 18: Will there be 3 contracts awarded per type of service (financial vs. digital) 
or 3 contracts awarded total? 
 

Answer 18:   No, there is a potential total of three (3) potential contracts overall, not 3 
contracts per type of service. 
 

Question 19: For references, what is the difference between a funder and a client? 
 

Answer 19:   A funder is an entity or organization that has granted you funds as a contractor, 
recipient, and/or sub-recipient to complete a contract or services. A client is an 
individual, organization, and/or entity that has received direct service from you. 
 

https://www.cityoftacoma.org/cms/One.aspx?portalId=169&pageId=971
https://www.cityoftacoma.org/cms/one.aspx?pageId=1882
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Question 20: If you are a prime contractor on another City of Tacoma project that runs 
concurrently, can you still put in a bid? 

Answer 20:    Yes. 

Question 21: Can I submit a City of Tacoma reference for funder or would that be a 
conflict of interest? 

Answer 21:    Yes respondents can submit a City of Tacoma reference. 

Question 22: What is a “qualified” firm? 
Are firms that are not registered with the State OMWBE office precluded? 
Are there any governmental “certification” requirements? 

Answer 22: We are seeking strategic partners with a demonstrated history of delivering 
  technical assistance to small and micro-businesses in the areas of financial and/or 
  digital literacy & readiness. Firms do not need to be registered with the state       
  OMWBE office and there are not governmental certification requirements. 

IF IN NEED, PLEASE SEE PRE-PROPOSAL PRESENTATION BELOW



Level I:  Tax and Freight not passed 

Level II:  Tax and Freight passed along with customer defined code/purchase ID 

Customer 
Defined 
Code = 

Purchase ID 
Field: 

• PO
• Invoice
• Contract

Numbers 

Exhibit A



Level III: Complete line item detail pass through, including tax, freight and customer  
defined data 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SMALL BUSINESS INNOVATION 
FUND P RE-P ROSAL MEETING

R F P  O V E R V I E W  A N D  G E N E R A L  R E Q U I R E M E N T S

CITY OF TACOMA

COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT



CITY OF TACOMA

W HAT IS THE SMALL 
BUSINESS 
INNOVATION FUND?
In alignment with the City of Tacoma’s commitment to anti-racist 
policies and procedures, the Community & Economic 
Development Department is seeking strategic partners to provide 
direct technical assistance to small and micro-businesses with an 
emphasis on the needs of BIPOC entrepreneurs, woman-owned 
companies, and small businesses located in Tacoma’s 
underserved, low-income areas as defined by the City of Tacoma’s 
Equity Index.

Efforts will focus on assistance that helps businesses become 
sustainable through providing culturally relevant intermediate to 
expert-level training and technical assistance in the areas of 
financial literacy and digital literacy/readiness.

The City anticipates awarding $500,000 for up to three separate 
contracts.



CITY OF TACOMA

KEY OUTCOMES

Businesses will receive advanced (intermediate to expert level) hands-on 
training that will build upon current existing knowledge, experience, and 
training. Businesses should be able to better understand their financials 
(profit & loss statements, balance sheets, etc.), learn the skills necessary to 
use relevant accounting/bookkeeping software and/or POS systems, 
properly prepare for succession, build business credit, improved capital 
access/readiness, etc. 

01. Fin a n cia l Lit e r a cy

Businesses will receive advanced (intermediate to expert level) hands-on 
training to make their businesses more competitive in the digital space. 
Once training is complete businesses should be able to or have already: 
established or improved an existing website, integrate e-commerce and 
digital marketing, improve social media presence and appearance, etc.

02. Digit a l Lit e r a cy & Re a d in e ss



01 02 03

Ja n u a ry 11: Request for Proposals (RFP) 
release

Ja n u a ry 17: Pre-submittal questions are
Ja n u a ry 18: Response to questions 

published
Ja n u a ry 24: RFP closes

Ja n u a ry 24t h  - 28: RFP's evaluated
Ja n u a ry 31: Notification

Ja n u a ry 2023
TBD: Contract negations and finalization
Fe b ru a ry 24t h *: Contract fully executed

Fe b ru a ry 2023
Ma rch  - Ea r ly Ap r il: Begin contracted 

work
Mid  Ap r il: Complete contracted work
Ma y 1s t : All invoices and final reports 

submitted

Ma rch - Ma y 2023

SBIF TIMELINE



CITY OF TACOMA

Fe e s  & Ch a rge s / Me t h od  o f 
Billin g/ Hou r ly Ra t e s  - 15 Po in t s

RFP  SCORING

Qu a lifica t ion s / Exp e r ie n ce  o f 
Re sp on d e n t  - 20 Po in t s

Qu a lifica t ion s / Exp e r ie n ce  o f Ke y 
Pe r son n e l - 25 Po in t s

Exa m p le s  o f Pro je ct s  - 10 Po in t s

Clie n t  Re fe re n ce s  - 10 Po in t s*

Re p or t in g Ca p a b ilit ie s  - 5 Po in t s

Ab ilit y t o  Provid e  Se rvice s  in  Pe r son  - 5 Po in t s

Ab ilit y t o  Provid e  Se rvice s  w it h in  sh or t  
t im e fra m e  - 5 Po in t s

Eq u it y in  Con t r a ct in g - 5 Po in t s



CITY OF TACOMA

REFERENCES

We requesting three written references, each RFP submission 
should include one (1) written reference for each of the 
following categories:

• Fu n d e r : an entity or organization that has contracted your 
organization in the past and/or present.

• Pa r t n e r  o r  Pe e r  Orga n iza t ion / Firm : an entity, 
organization, or firm within your community/field that you 
have worked with and/or alongside. 

• Clie n t : A business that you have provided direct service to.



CITY OF TACOMA

RFP  SUBMISSIO N
Your RFP submission should contain the following 
components (refer to Appendix B- Project 
Requirements):

• Organization  and Project Contacts
• Proposal Information (project title  and amount 

requested)
• Proposal details:

⚬ A) Experience
⚬ B) Works Scope and Description
⚬ C) Success Measures

• Targets
• Collaborating Organizations and/or Consultants
• Grant Budget & Narrative
• Areas of Service Delivery



CITY OF TACOMA

CONTRACT 
REQUIREMENTS

• Com m e rcia l Ge n e ra l Lia b ilit y In su ra n ce  (w it h  lim it s  n o  le ss  t h a n  $1 m illion  a n d  
$2 m illion  a n n u a l a ggre gra t e )

• Com m e rcia l (Bu s in e ss ) Au t om ob ile  Lia b ilit y In su ra n ce  (w it h  lim it s  n o  le ss  t h a n  
$1 m illion )

• Worke r s '  Com p e n sa t ion  (in  com p lia n ce  w it h  s t a t e  r e gu la t ion s)
• Em p loye r s '  Lia b ilit y In su ra n ce  (w it h  lim it s  n o  le ss  t h a n  $1 m ilion )
• Profe ss ion a l Lia b ilit y In su ra n ce  o r  Er ro r s  a n d  Om m iss ion s  (w it h  lim it s  o f $1 

m illion  a n d  $2 m illion  a ggre ga t e )
• Ot h e r*

INSURANCE



CITY OF TACOMA

CONTRACT 
REQUIREMENTS

Th e  Cit y o f Ta com a  (Cit y) u se s  Ar ib a  fo r  it s  p rocu re m e n t  p roce sse s .  
Ar ib a  is  a n  e Com m e rce  w e b s it e  t h a t  fa cilit a t e s  p rocu re m e n t . It  
s t r e a m lin e s  b u ye r s '  a n d  se lle r s '  a b ilit y t o  con n e ct  a n d  fin d  e a ch  
o t h e r .

If you  a re  n o t  a lr e a d y r e gis t e re d  a s  a  Cit y o f Ta com a  Su p p lie r you  
m a y d o  so  on lin e . On ce  r e ce ive d  cit y s t a ff w ill r e vie w  you r  
r e gs is t r a t ion  a n d  n o t ify you  o f you r  a p p rova l s t a t u s . 

Are  You  a  Ta com a  Su p p lie r ?
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